
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 5, 2018 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – MARCH 5, 2018 

 
 

Board Room                Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal and Real Property 
(SCHEDULED ONE-HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Justin Honaker – Lebanon Community Fellowship 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Transient Occupancy Tax Ordinance 
2. County Property Transferred to Cleveland EMS Agency 

 
AWARDS 
 

1. Cole Stoots, Lebanon, Three-Time State Champion 
2. Logan Smith, Lebanon, State Champion 
3. Casey Bush, Castlewood, State Champion 

 
 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 5, 2018 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 
PRESENTATIONS (Informational Only) (Limited to 5 Minutes) 
 

1. Dr. Thomas Wright, SVCC President 
2. Rick Barton – OAC Outdoors 
3. Reggie Childers – County Saving Plan  

 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
Cumberland Mountain Community Services Board 
 
Fred Sayers (Resigned)               3-Year Term 
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Kirby Meadows                                       4-Year Term 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of February 5, 2018     

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. FY 2019 County Budget Update ……………………………………………………...C-1 
 

2. Opportunity Zone………………………………………………………………………..C-2 
 

3. County Project List……………………………………………………………………...C-3 
 

 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 5, 2018 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
REQUESTS 

  
4. Authorization of “March is American Red Cross Month” Proclamation………C-4 

 
5. Authorization of Letter of Support for Copper Creek Moccasin Volunteer                            

Fire Department Pumper Fire Truck Grant …….……………………….……….....C-5 
 

6. Authorization to Request for Bid (RFB) of County HVAC Services……………C-6 
 

7. Authorization of RC Planning Commission Plat…………………………………..C-7 
 

8. Authorization of Travel Requests…………………………………………………….C-8 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• Castlewood W&S ……………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...L 
• RC Cannery Reports……………………………………………………………………M 
• RC Building Inspector Reports……………………………………………………….N   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss a real property matter pursuant 
to Section 2.2-3712(3) and a litigation matter pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(7). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________  

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Mark Mitchell - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                                         Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                            Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 3/5/18  6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 
1. Transient Occupancy Tax Ordinance 

 
2. County Property Transferred to Cleveland EMS Agency 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Monday, 
March 5, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the adoption of the “Transient 
Occupancy Tax Ordinance”. 

A copy of the proposed Transient Occupancy Tax Ordinance is available for review 
in the Office of the County Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during 
normal business hours.   

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Government Conference 
Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, 
Virginia during the regular monthly meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 



RUSSELL COUNTY 
TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX 

 
Title and statutory authority.  

The title of this ordinance shall be “Russell County Transient Occupancy Tax” in accordance 
with Section 58.1-3819.  This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authority of Title 58.1, Section 
58.1-3819 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, and amendments thereto.  
Jurisdiction.  

The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to Russell County, Virginia, including the 
incorporated municipalities where a transient occupancy tax does not exist.  
Purpose.  

The purpose of this ordinance is to impose a tax on transient occupancy in Russell County and 
to enlarge the county's tax base.  
Amount of levy.  

There is hereby imposed and levied by Russell County, Virginia, on each transient, a lodging 
tax in the amount of five (5) percent of the charge made for each room rented to such transient. 
Such tax shall be collected from such transient at the time rooms or spaces are rented and in 
accordance with this ordinance. The tax imposed hereby shall apply to all hotels, motels, boarding 
houses, travel campgrounds, and other facilities offering guest rooms, except that the tax imposed 
hereunder shall not apply to rooms or spaces rented for continuous occupancy by the same 
individual or group for thirty (30) or more days in hotels, motels, boarding houses, travel 
campgrounds and other facilities.  
Collection.  

Every person, firm or corporation receiving any payment for lodging with respect to which a 
tax is levied under this ordinance shall collect the amount of such tax so imposed from the transient 
on whom such tax is levied or from the person paying for such lodging at the time payment for 
such lodging is made. The tax required to be collected under this section shall be deemed to be 
held in trust by the person, firm or corporation required to collect such taxes as provided in this 
ordinance.  
Reports required.  

The person, firm or corporation collecting any tax as provided in this article shall make out a 
report thereof on such forms and setting forth such information as the treasurer may prescribe, and 
require, showing the amount of lodging charges collected, and the taxes required to be collected; 
and, shall sign and deliver such report to the treasurer with remittance of the taxes collected, less 
three percent of the total amount collected each calendar month, on or before the 20th of the month 
following the month in which the taxes are collected. The three (3) percent deduction is allowed 
to defray the expenses incurred by persons, firms or corporations collecting this tax, except that 
no deduction shall be allowed if the amount due was delinquent.  
Penalties for late payment.  

If any person shall fail or refuse to remit to the treasurer the tax required to be collected and 
paid under this ordinance within the time and in the amount specified there shall be added to such 
tax by the treasurer a penalty in the amount of ten (10) percent thereof and interest on the principal 
amount thereon at the rate of ten (10) percent per annum which shall be computed upon the taxes 



and penalty from the first day of the month next following the month in which such taxes are due 
and payable.  
Failure to collect taxes or make reports.  

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to fail, or refuse, to collect the taxes 
imposed under this ordinance and to make reports and remittance as required. The treasurer shall 
have the power to examine pertinent records for administering or enforcing the provisions of this 
ordinance.  
Records required.  

It shall be the duty of every person, firm or corporation liable for the collection and payment 
to the county of any tax imposed by this ordinance to keep and preserve for a period of four years 
such suitable records as may be necessary to determine the amount of tax due to have been 
collected and paid to the county. The treasurer may inspect such records at all reasonable times.  
Violation, penalties.  

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation to violate any of the provisions of this 
ordinance. Every person, firm or corporation convicted of violating the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be subject to a fine of not more than one hundred dollars ($100.00); and each failure, refusal, 
neglect, or violation and each day's continuance thereof, shall constitute a separate offense. This 
penalty shall be deemed to be in addition to and not in lieu of the penalties set forth in this 
ordinance.  
Certified copies of ordinance.  

Certified copies of this ordinance and all amendments thereto shall be filed in the offices of 
the Treasurer and the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Russell County, Virginia.  
Validity.  

Should any, article, section, subsection, or provision of this ordinance be declared by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 
validity or constitutionality of this ordinance or any part thereof other than the part so declared to 
be invalid or unconstitutional.  
Conflicting ordinances.  

All ordinances or portions of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to 
the extent of their conflict.  
Effective date.  

This ordinance shall become effective on and after _____________.  

  



Code of Virginia
Title 58.1. Taxation
Chapter 38. Miscellaneous Taxes
    
§ 58.1-3819. Transient occupancy tax
  
A. Any county, by duly adopted ordinance, may levy a transient occupancy tax on hotels, motels,
boarding houses, travel campgrounds, and other facilities offering guest rooms rented out for
continuous occupancy for fewer than 30 consecutive days. Such tax shall be in such amount and
on such terms as the governing body may, by ordinance, prescribe. Such tax shall not exceed two
percent of the amount of charge for the occupancy of any room or space occupied; however,
Accomack County, Albemarle County, Alleghany County, Amherst County, Augusta County,
Bedford County, Bland County, Botetourt County, Brunswick County, Campbell County, Caroline
County, Carroll County, Craig County, Cumberland County, Dickenson County, Dinwiddie
County, Floyd County, Franklin County, Frederick County, Giles County, Gloucester County,
Goochland County, Grayson County, Greene County, Greensville County, Halifax County,
Highland County, Isle of Wight County, James City County, King George County, Loudoun
County, Madison County, Mecklenburg County, Montgomery County, Nelson County,
Northampton County, Page County, Patrick County, Powhatan County, Prince Edward County,
Prince George County, Prince William County, Pulaski County, Rockbridge County, Russell
County, Smyth County, Spotsylvania County, Stafford County, Tazewell County, Warren County,
Washington County, Wise County, Wythe County, and York County may levy a transient
occupancy tax not to exceed five percent, and any excess over two percent shall be designated
and spent solely for tourism and travel, marketing of tourism or initiatives that, as determined
after consultation with the local tourism industry organizations, including representatives of
lodging properties located in the county, attract travelers to the locality, increase occupancy at
lodging properties, and generate tourism revenues in the locality. If any locality has enacted an
additional transient occupancy tax pursuant to subsection C of § 58.1-3823, then the governing
body of the locality shall be deemed to have complied with the requirement that it consult with
local tourism industry organizations, including lodging properties. If there are no local tourism
industry organizations in the locality, the governing body shall hold a public hearing prior to
making any determination relating to how to attract travelers to the locality and generate
tourism revenues in the locality.
  
B. The tax imposed hereunder shall not apply to rooms or spaces rented and continuously
occupied by the same individual or same group of individuals for 30 or more days in hotels,
motels, boarding houses, travel campgrounds, and other facilities offering guest rooms. In
addition, that portion of any tax imposed hereunder in excess of two percent shall not apply to
travel campgrounds in Stafford County.
  
C. Nothing herein contained shall affect any authority heretofore granted to any county, city or
town to levy such a transient occupancy tax. The county tax limitations imposed pursuant to §
58.1-3711 shall apply to any tax levied under this section, mutatis mutandis.
  
D. Any county, city or town that requires local hotel and motel businesses, or any class thereof,
to collect, account for and remit to such locality a local tax imposed on the consumer may allow
such businesses a commission for such service in the form of a deduction from the tax remitted.
Such commission shall be provided for by ordinance, which shall set the rate thereof at no less
than three percent and not to exceed five percent of the amount of tax due and accounted for. No

1 1/10/2018

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3823/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3711/
Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



commission shall be allowed if the amount due was delinquent.
  
E. All transient occupancy tax collections shall be deemed to be held in trust for the county, city
or town imposing the tax.
  
Code 1950, § 76.1; 1970, c. 443; 1971, Ex. Sess., c. 214; 1973, c. 433; 1974, c. 614; 1983, c. 313;
1984, c. 675; 1985, c. 556; 1992, cc. 263, 834; 1996, c. 833;1997, cc. 757, 764;1998, cc. 729, 733;
1999, cc. 233, 234, 241, 253, 260;2000, c. 470;2001, cc. 571, 585;2003, c. 939;2004, cc. 7, 610;
2005, cc. 76, 915;2006, cc. 67, 376;2007, cc. 86, 596, 767;2008, c. 230;2009, cc. 13, 31, 116, 497,
513, 524;2010, c. 505;2011, cc. 385, 606;2012, c. 290;2013, cc. 19, 200, 319, 378;2014, c. 188;
2015, cc. 57, 78, 98;2016, c. 51;2017, c. 23.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.
  

2 1/10/2018

http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?961+ful+CHAP0833
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?961+ful+CHAP0833
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0757
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0764
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0764
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?981+ful+CHAP0729
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?981+ful+CHAP0733
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?981+ful+CHAP0733
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0233
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0234
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0241
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0253
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0260
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0260
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0470
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?001+ful+CHAP0470
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0571
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0585
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?011+ful+CHAP0585
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0939
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP0939
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0007
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0610
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?041+ful+CHAP0610
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0076
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0915
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0915
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0067
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0376
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0376
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0086
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0596
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0767
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0767
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0230
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?081+ful+CHAP0230
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0013
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0031
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0116
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0497
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0513
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0524
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0524
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0505
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0505
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0385
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0606
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0606
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0290
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?121+ful+CHAP0290
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0019
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0200
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0319
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0378
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0378
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0188
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0188
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0057
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0078
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0098
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?151+ful+CHAP0098
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0051
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0051
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0023
Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Monday, 
March 5, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the transfer of real property to 
the Cleveland Volunteer Rescue Squad. 

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Government Conference 
Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, 
Virginia during the regular monthly meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 



Cleveland

01/06/2015

Lonzo Lester
Polygonal Line



Code of Virginia
Title 15.2. Counties, Cities and Towns
Chapter 18. Buildings, Monuments and Lands Generally
    
§ 15.2-1800. Purchase, sale, use, etc., of real property
  
A. A locality may acquire by purchase, gift, devise, bequest, exchange, lease as lessee, or
otherwise, title to, or any interests in, any real property, whether improved or unimproved,
within its jurisdiction, for any public use. Acquisition of any interest in real property by
condemnation is governed by Chapter 19 (§ 15.2-1901 et seq.). The acquisition of a leasehold or
other interest in a telecommunications tower, owned by a nongovernmental source, for the
operation of a locality's wireless radio communications systems shall be governed by this
chapter.
  
B. Subject to any applicable requirements of Article VII, Section 9 of the Constitution, any
locality may sell, at public or private sale, exchange, lease as lessor, mortgage, pledge,
subordinate interest in or otherwise dispose of its real property, which includes the superjacent
airspace (except airspace provided for in § 15.2-2030) which may be subdivided and conveyed
separate from the subjacent land surface, provided that no such real property, whether improved
or unimproved, shall be disposed of until the governing body has held a public hearing
concerning such disposal. However, the holding of a public hearing shall not apply to (i) the
leasing of real property to another public body, political subdivision or authority of the
Commonwealth or (ii) conveyance of site development easements, or utility easements related to
transportation projects, across public property, including, but not limited to, easements for
ingress, egress, utilities, cable, telecommunications, storm water management, and other similar
conveyances, that are consistent with the local capital improvement program, involving
improvement of property owned by the locality. The provisions of this section shall not apply to
the vacation of public interests in real property under the provisions of Articles 6 (§ 15.2-2240 et
seq.) and 7 (§ 15.2-2280 et seq.) of Chapter 22.
  
C. A city or town may also acquire real property for a public use outside its boundaries; a county
may acquire real property for a public use outside its boundaries when expressly authorized by
law.
  
D. A locality may construct, insure, and equip buildings, structures and other improvements on
real property owned or leased by it.
  
E. A locality may operate, maintain, and regulate the use of its real property or may contract with
other persons to do so.
  
Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, general or special, no locality providing access
and opportunity to use its real property, whether improved or unimproved, may deny equal
access or a fair opportunity to use such real property to, or otherwise discriminate against, the
Boy Scouts of America or the Girl Scouts of the USA. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed
to require any locality to sponsor the Boy Scouts of America or the Girl Scouts of the USA, or to
exempt any such groups from local policies governing access to and use of a locality's real
property. The provisions of this paragraph applicable to a locality shall also apply equally to any
local governmental entity, including a department, agency, or authority.
  
F. This section shall not be construed to deprive the resident judge or judges of the right to

1 1/30/2018

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-1901/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-2030/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-2240/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-2280/
Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



control the use of the courthouse.
  
G. "Public use" as used in this section shall have the same meaning as in § 1-219.1.
  
Code 1950, § 15-692; 1962, c. 623, § 15.1-262; 1968, c. 418; 1974, c. 282; 1977, c. 269; 1979, c.
431; 1980, cc. 212, 559; 1984, c. 241; 1986, cc. 477, 573; 1990, c. 813; 1997, c. 587;1998, c. 696;
2005, c. 822;2006, c. 57;2007, cc. 882, 901, 926;2017, c. 401.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this section
may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters whose
provisions have expired.
  

2 1/30/2018

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/1-219.1/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?981+ful+CHAP0696
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?981+ful+CHAP0696
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0822
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?051+ful+CHAP0822
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0057
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0057
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0882
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0901
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0926
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?071+ful+CHAP0926
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0401


                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors                       Information Item:  Awards 

137 Highland Drive          Presenter: BOS 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/5/18   6:00 PM 
 

 
AWARDS – Wrestling Team 
 

1. Cole Stoots, Lebanon, Three-Time State Champion 
 

2. Logan Smith, Lebanon, State Champion 
 

3. Casey Bush, Castlewood, State Champion 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Purposes Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Article 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors Information Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 3/5/18      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 

PRESENTATIONS (Informational Only) (Limited to 5 Minutes) 
 

1. Dr. Thomas Wright, SVCC President 
2. Rick Barton – OAC Outdoors 
3. Reggie Childers – County Saving Plan  
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
No Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/5/18  6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
Cumberland Mountain Community Services Board 
 
Fred Sayers (Resigned)               3-Year Term 
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Kirby Meadows     4-Year Term 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  Board Discretion.  
SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.  









 
Board of Supervisors                                    Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting: 3/5/18      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• February 5, 2018 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 05, 2018 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, February 
05, 2018 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Mark Mitchell 
Tim Lovelace (Joined the meeting at 6:35 pm) 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Matthew Crum, Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 
Invocation by Brandon Helbert, Calvary Baptist Church followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to approve 
the agenda as amended. 
 
Aye: Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations 
 
Martha Whitt, United Way of Southwest Virginia gave a short presentation about the various programs 
and initiatives that they offer including the IGNITE and the Backpacks Unite program. 
 
Jessee Fields and Darrell Beavers, Russell County Combined Search and Rescue addressed the Board 
about the increase in the need for search and rescue team due to tourism, an aging community and a 
rise in autism to name a few.  They also stated that there is a lack of vertical rescue equipment.   Mr. 
Fields made request for funding for training and equipment in the upcoming budget in the amount of 
$5000. 
 



Wyatt (Scooter) Carter addressed the Board about the proposal of selling the equipment his gym 
equipment to the County. 
 
New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 03, 2018 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 03, 2018 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 15, 2018 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 15, 2018 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 24, 2018 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 24, 2018 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Lou Wallace and Carl Rhea 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $645,627.60 including withholdings and reoccurring. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Mark Mitchell and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
NOTE:  Tim Lovelace entered the meeting at 6:35 pm. 
 

APPROVAL OF A TWENTY-FIVE PERCENT DISCOUNT FOR USE OF THE FITNESS CENTER FOR COUNTY 
EMS, COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENTS, TOWN OF LEBANON AND TOWN OF HONAKER POLICE 

DEPARTMENTS   
 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
allow the County EMS, County Fire Departments, Town of Lebanon Police and Town of Honaker Police 
Departments a discount of twenty-five percent to use the fitness center. 



 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Tim Lovelace and Mark Mitchell 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened public comment period. 
 
Carla Glass, Dante Community Association gave an update on their major accomplishments.  She asked 
if the County would give them permission to clean up around the old Arty Lee School. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE DANTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION TO CLEAN UP THE PROPERTY AROUND THE OLD 

ARTY LEE SCHOOL IN DANTE 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the Dante Community Association to clean up the property around the old Arty Lee School in 
Dante. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 
Kelly McBride Delph, RCPL stated that the library depends on the County allocation in order to receive 
their state aid, she asked that the County not reduce their appropriation in the upcoming budget. 
 
Toby Edwards, CPRWA updated the Board on the solid waste authority. 
 
The Chair closed public comment period. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Matt Crum discussed the Unsafe Buildings Ordinance and the Russell County Transient Occupancy Tax 
with the Board. 

APPROVAL TO HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE RC TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing on the Russell County Transient Occupancy Tax at the March 05, 2018 Board of 
Supervisors meeting beginning at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN GRANT FROM DCJS 



 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept and appropriate the Violence Against Women Grant in the amount of $46,905.00 from the 
Department of Criminal Justice. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON A TRANSFER OF PROPERTY TO THE CLEVELAND FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 

 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to hold 
a public hearing on the transfer of property to the Cleveland Fire Department on March 05, 2018 at 6:00 
pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Mark Mitchell, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE PUMPED HYDRO-ELECTRIC FACILITY 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a Resolution of Support for the Pumped Hydro-Electric facility. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors enter 
into Executive (closed) Session for the investment or bargaining of public funds pursuant to Virginia code 
2.2-3711(A)(6) the Code of Virginia. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 



Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Mark Mitchell – AYE 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO NEGOTIATE AND PURCHASE GYM EQUIPMENT 
 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to authorize the County Administrator and Kim Short to negotiate price and purchase gym equipment 
up to an amount discussed and agreed upon in Executive Session. 
 
The vote was; 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Lou Wallace 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace and Carl Rhea 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________                                    ____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                  Chairperson 



 
Board of Supervisors Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson   
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/5/18  6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s February 2018 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s February 2018 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s February 2018 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• February 2018 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-8 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/5/18    6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for March 2018: 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. FY 2019 County Budget Update ……………………………………………………...C-1 
 

2. Opportunity Zone………………………………………………………………………..C-2 
 

3. County Project List……………………………………………………………………...C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
  

4. Authorization of “March is American Red Cross Month” Proclamation………C-4 
 

5. Authorization of Letter of Support for Copper Creek Moccasin Volunteer                            
Fire Department Pumper Fire Truck Grant …….……………………….……….....C-5 

 
6. Authorization to Request for Bid (RFB) of County HVAC Services……………C-6 

 
7. Authorization of RC Planning Commission Plat…………………………………..C-7 

 
8. Authorization of Travel Requests…………………………………………………….C-8 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Various 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Sadler, Jeff (DHCD)
To: OZ (DHCD)
Subject: Opportunity Zones | Time Sensitive Input Needed
Date: Friday, February 16, 2018 11:25:30 AM
Attachments: image001.png
Importance: High

To: Local Government Chief Appointed Officials or Designees
 
From: The Department of Housing and Community Development and the Virginia Economic
Development Partnership
 
The Federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 included provisions for a new revitalization tool,
the Opportunity Zone and Opportunity Fund. The Governor of each state has until March
22, 2018, to nominate a limited number of qualified census tracts as “Opportunity Zones.”
The Governor is seeking input to assist in guiding the selection process. Please use the link
below to provide input on the qualified census tracts in your locality and to learn more about
Opportunity Zones. Please be advised that the timeline for selecting Opportunity Zones is
very tight and that your input is required by 11:59 p.m. on March 2, 2018.
 
You can find more information on our webpage
 
Survey Link: Opportunity Zones Local Input & Priorities Survey
 
*We will be hosting a webinar on the Opportunity Zone Designation Process
Wednesday, February 21 at 12:00pm. The call in information is below. There is no
need to pre-register for this webinar.*
 
Meeting number:
593 907 903
 
Meeting Link:
https://vitacov.webex.com/vitacov/j.php?MTID=ma18cf2cda78ae367b8249b9e79544bfd
 
Audio connection:
1-866-8425779  
 
Conference Code: 475 623 3278
 
If you need additional guidance, please use OZ@DHCD.Virginia.gov so that a team
member can respond in a timely manner.
 
Thank you for your assistance.
 

Jeff Sadler
Associate Director
 
Community Revitalization Office
Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development
Main Street Centre, 600 East Main Street, Suite 300
Richmond, Virginia 23219

mailto:Jeff.Sadler@dhcd.virginia.gov
mailto:OZ@dhcd.virginia.gov
http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/index.php/component/content/article/346.html
http://sgiz.mobi/s3/8d7a6244347a
https://vitacov.webex.com/vitacov/j.php?MTID=ma18cf2cda78ae367b8249b9e79544bfd
mailto:OZ@DHCD.Virginia.gov



OPPORTUNITY ZONES

The Federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 included provisions for a new revitalization tool, the Opportunity 

Zone and Opportunity Fund. Broadly speaking, the Zones and Funds will allow investors to receive tax 

benefits on currently unrealized capital gains by investing those gains in qualified census tracts (Opportunity 

Zones). While the federal government is responsible for defining the investment process, the Governor of 

each state has until March 22, 2018 to nominate 25 percent of qualified census tracts as “Opportunity Zones.” 

In order to facilitate the selection process, the Governor is seeking input regarding economic conditions and 

economic development goals and opportunities in your community.

According to criteria used in the tax code, the CDFI fund has produced information regarding eligible tracts 

for the Commonwealth of Virginia. There are currently 840 eligible census tracts in Virginia. 210 of those 

census tracts can be nominated by the Governor to be Opportunity Zones. 

Please use this map using information provided by the CDFI Fund to determine eligible tracts in 

your locality. Please use your cursor or use the arrows in the upper left hand corner of the map to 

zoom in on your locality. You may also search for census tracks within a specific locality by entering 

in the name of the locality and clicking the magnifying glass button in the search field on the top left 

of the map.

Congress issued non-binding guidance on criteria for consideration of Opportunity Zones. Guidance suggests 

that consideration should be given to census tracts that mutually reinforce state, local, or private economic 

development initiatives to attract investment and foster startup activity, have demonstrated success in 

geographically targeted development programs in the past (example: Enterprise Zones) and have recently 

experienced significant layoffs due to business closures or relocations.

Special consideration will be given to localities and tracts in the Commonwealth that reinforce state or local 

economic development initiatives. Following guidance from the US Department of Treasury, Virginia 

Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) and Virginia Economic Development 

Partnership (VEDP) have identified several criteria to assist the Governor in guiding the Opportunity Zone 

nominations. DHCD is soliciting input from localities and other interested parties.

The identified selection criteria are:

A. Tract is a qualified Opportunity Zone tract.

B. Tract has identifiable state and/or local incentive programs, such as Enterprise Zones. 

C. Tract is in a locality with above average or high Fiscal Stress Index ranking.

D. Tract contains or is near an economic investment driver such as a research facility, port, university, 

hospital, and/or a facility designated by VEDP or other state agency as a strategic site.

E. Tract has access to a major roadway.

F. Tract was identified by the locality as a strategic economic development area. The information furnished 

by local governments and interested stakeholders will strongly influence the final nominations, but it 

will likely not be possible to accommodate the priorities identified by every locality.

G. Proportionality:

 Skip to Content | Agencies | Help | Governor | Search Virginia.gov

HOME BUILDING CODES HOUSING BUSINESS COMMUNITY REGIONS AT WORK C L G RESOURCES

SEARCH DHCD

Search DHCD

DHCD QUICK MENU

ABOUT DHCD

COMPLETE PROGRAM LIST

CODE DEVELOPMENT PROCESS (CDPVA)

GO VIRGINIA

VIRGINIA'S RESILIENCY PLAN

BUSINESS APPRECIATION MONTH

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

JOB OPPORTUNITIES

PRESS RELEASES

PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITIES

VIRGINIA HOUSING TRUST FUND PLAN

LOOKING FOR RENTAL HOUSING?

PRIVATE ACTIVITY BONDS

GOVERNOR'S HOUSING CONFERENCE

CONSOLIDATED PLANNING PROCESS

CALENDAR OF EVENTS

MOST READ CONTENT

Down Payment Assistance (DPA)

Down Payment Assistance (DPA) 

Frequently Asked Questions

Virginia Uniform Statewide Building 

Code (USBC)

Housing Programs

Building Codes Programs

eVA Transparency Reports

Page 1 of 2Opportunity Zones

2/16/2018http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/index.php/component/content/article/346.html



1. Our process will consider proportionality at the regional, sub-regional, and local levels. However, 

due to the small number of eligible tracts in many localities, it is not possible to be strictly 

proportional at the locality level.

2. For initial mapping purposes, localities should expect no more than ~25%  of their eligible census 

tracts placed in Opportunity Zones. 

3. Our goal is to have each GO Virginia region have 25% of their eligible tracts placed in Opportunity 

Zones and we will strive for proportional balance within sub-regions, using regional EDO 

boundaries and other proxies for sub-regional shared economic interests.

LOCAL INPUT & PRIORITIES
The Chief Administrative Officers of each locality (Counties, Cities, and Towns) that has an eligible census 

tract based on CDFI fund information have been notified directly of this nomination process and have 

received a survey form for making their priorities known. 

For a hard copy of the survey questions sent to localities, please click here. 

The Department of Housing and Community Development & Virginia Economic Development Partnership 

encourage additional interested stakeholders to submit their input through the form here: click here.

Additionally. DHCD and VEDP would like to hear from investors who may be interested in targeting their 

investment in lower income tracts and receiving the potential tax deferral benefits of investing in an 

Opportunity Zone. Please use the following letter templates and submit your letters via email to 

OZ@dhcd.virginia.gov .

• VA Opportunity Zone General Partner Letter

• VA Opportunity Zone Investor Letter

Please be aware that final selection of Opportunity Zones is subject to approval by the Governor, and final 

rules developed by the U.S. Treasury. The information furnished by local governments and interested 

stakeholders will strongly influence the final nominations, but it will likely not be possible to accommodate 

the priorities identified by every locality.

We expect a high volume of inquiries and therefore ask that you submit all input through the appropriate 

forms above. If you have further questions, you may contact Jeff Sadler at OZ@dhcd.virginia.gov .

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES:
• https://www.cdfifund.gov/pages/opportunity-zones.aspx

• http://eig.org/opportunityzones

TIMELINE
• February 16–March 2 

A. Locality Input Survey – Survey to chief appointed officials (County Administrators, City Managers and 

Town Managers) requesting priority ranking of their eligible zones based on existing or planned local 

tools and efforts at encouraging start up activities and revitalization in specific eligible census tracts. 

Localities will be asked to identify their eligible tracts that are a priority for designation and any special 

consideration that should be given to 1 or 2 contiguous tracts. (March 2, 2018 Deadline for input).

B. General Input and Investor Input (March 2, 2018 Deadline for input).

C. DHCD and VEDP coordinate recommended map and criteria through input from state agencies.

D. DHCD and VEDP hold information sessions with General Assembly members.

• February 23-March 9 – DHCD and VEDP compile state and local input and compare it to identified 

criteria. Final mapping exercises.

• March 9 – FINAL DHCD/VEDP nomination recommendations complete.

• March 20 – Nominations Submitted

Select Language 
Powered by Translate

© Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development • Main Street Centre • 600 East Main Street, Suite 300  • Richmond, VA 23219 • (804) 371-7000
WAI compliant

Jobs at DHCD | Web Policy | FOIA | Webmaster | Contact Us | SiteMap | DHCD Logos

Page 2 of 2Opportunity Zones

2/16/2018http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/index.php/component/content/article/346.html



 Search GEOID or Locality+
–

6mi

-80.735 37.429 Degrees

Page 1 of 1Opportunity Zone Tract Locator

2/22/2018http://vedp.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=3e058276ef7e45da99a042d5baddb83c



Opportunity Zones Local Input & Priorities Survey: Counties Page 1 of 1 
 
 
 
 
 

Opportunity Zones Local 
Input & Priorities Survey: 
Counties 

 
Thank You! 

Thank you for taking our survey. Your response is very 
important to us. 

 
We expect a high volume of inquiries and therefore ask that 
you submit all input through this survey. If you have further 
questions, please contact Jeff Sadler at (804) 371-7069 or 
OZ@dhcd.virginia.gov. 

 
 

 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
http://sgiz.mobi/s3/8d7a6244347a 3/1/2018 

mailto:OZ@dhcd.virginia.gov
http://sgiz.mobi/s3/8d7a6244347a


COUNTY PROJECTS  
ACTIVITY LIST 

 
 

 

1. Glade Hollow Ball Park – Building Inspector Report – Electrical/lights/Paint/stain/decks/ 
railing/roof/field work/fence repairs 
 

1. Oak Grove Community – Building Inspector Report -  HVAC/Refrigerator/Stove – Move 
Refrigerator/Stove/Microwave to Center – Cleanup, tile, electrical, paint, door facings.  
 

2. Honaker Ball Park – Building Inspector Report - Electrical/lights/bathrooms/electrical & fence 
 

3. Castlewood Community Center – Roof replaced, upper floor remodeled, & lower floor 
cleaned???? 
 

4. Cleveland Ball Park -  Sand/Brick Dust/Electrical/ice machine 
 

5. Dante Cleanup – Dante Ball Park right-of-way near old school building 
 

6. Animal Shelter Floor - Paint 
 

 

 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, March is American Red Cross Month - a special time to recognize and 
thank our heroes - those who volunteer, donate blood, take life-saving courses, or 
provide financial donations to support an organization whose mission is to help those in 
need; and 
 
WHEREAS, we would like to remember those who help all of us here in the County of 
Russell by giving their time to help their neighbor, and thank our heroes - our 
volunteers, blood donors, class takers and financial supporters who help us assist those 
in need; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the County of Russell Virginia, the Red Cross works tirelessly through its 
employees and volunteers to help when disaster strikes, when someone needs 
lifesaving skills or the comfort of a helping hand. They provide 24-hour support to 
members of the military, veterans and their families, and provides training in CPR, and 
first aid; and 
  
WHEREAS, across the country, the American Red Cross responds to nearly 70,000 
disasters a year.  It   provides some 400,000 services to military members, veterans and 
civilians, collects and distributes about 40 percent of the nation's blood supply and trains 
more than seven million people in first aid, water safety and other lifesaving skills every 
year; and 
 
WHEREAS, our community depends on the American Red Cross, which relies on 
donations of time, money and blood to fulfill its humanitarian mission.  Despite these 
challenging economic times, the American Red Cross continues to offer help and 
comfort to those in need. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, the County of Russell Board of Supervisors and all our citizens do 
hereby proclaim the month of March 2018 as American Red Cross Month and we 
encourage all Americans to support this organization and its noble humanitarian 
mission. 
 
 

 



 

 

IT IS SO RESOLVED this the 5th day of March 2018.  

Present: ___________ 
Absent: ___________ 
Ayes:  ___________ 
Nays:  ___________ 
 
 
 
               Attest:       ___ 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson                       Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
Russell County Board of Supervisors  Russell County 





 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

March 5, 2018 

The Honorable Brian Kamoie 
Assistant Administrator, Grant Programs Directorate  
Federal Emergency Management Agency 
800 K Street NW, 9th Floor North Tower 
Washington, DC 20001-8000 

Re: Copper Creek Moccasin Volunteer Fire Department Pumper Fire Truck Grant 
Application 

Dear Honorable Kamoie, 

Russell County Board of Supervisors respectfully encourages you to support the 

Copper Creek Moccasin Volunteer Fire Department Pumper Fire Truck Grant 

Application for a critically needed piece of equipment to protect the residents of Russell 

County Virginia.  The Pumper Fire Truck will enhance the Copper Creek Moccasin 

Volunteer Fire Department emergency operations increasing the health and safety of 

the residents while providing support for emergency responders regarding fire events.   

The Russell County Board of Supervisors strongly endorses the grant application 

by Copper Creek Moccasin Volunteer Fire Department for a Pumper Fire Truck Grant. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important community request.  

Sincerely, 

 

Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 

Cc: Honorable H. Morgan Griffith, Member of Congress  

 










































































































































































































































































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 3/5/18  6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Cleveland.pdf
	Cleveland

	Awards.pdf
	Meeting: 3/5/18   6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 3/5/18      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Board Appointments.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports.pdf
	Meeting: 3/5/18    6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Reports.pdf
	Meeting: 3/5/18    6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Board Appointments.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.




